
EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately.  Follow the green signs.  Use the stairs 
not the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

Notice of Meeting 

Climate Change Advisory Panel 
Councillors Virgo, Mrs McKenzie-Boyle, Mrs Hayes MBE, 
Mrs Ingham, Kennedy, Leake, Mossom, Parker and Temperton 

Monday 25 April 2022, 6.30  - 8.30 pm 
Online Only - Zoom 

 

 
Agenda 

Item Description Page 

1.  Apologies for Absence   

2.  Declarations of Interest   

 Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary or affected 
interests in respect of any matter to be considered at this meeting. 
 
Any Member with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in a matter should 
withdraw from the meeting when the matter is under consideration and 
should notify the Democratic Services Officer in attendance that they are 
withdrawing as they have such an interest. If the Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interest is not entered on the register of Members interests the Monitoring 
Officer must be notified of the interest within 28 days. 
 
Any Member with an affected Interest in a matter must disclose the interest to 
the meeting.  There is no requirement to withdraw from the meeting when the 
interest is only an affected interest, but the Monitoring Officer should be 
notified of the interest, if not previously notified of it, within 28 days of the 
meeting.  

 

3.  Minutes  1 - 6 

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Climate 
Change Panel on 9 March 2022.  

 

4.  Urgent Items of Business   

 Any other items which, pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the Chairman decides are urgent.  

 

5.  A presentation from Berks, Bucks and Oxon Wildlife Trust (BBOWT) - 
Matthew Stanton  

 

6.  A presentation from Bracknell Forest Council's Natural Estate  - 
Stephen Chown - Head of Natural Estates  

7 - 28 

7.  A presentation from the Crown Estate - Des Sussex 29 - 42 

8.  A presentation from Warfield Environment Group - Sheila Collings  



EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately.  Follow the green signs.  Use the stairs 
not the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

Sound recording, photographing, filming and use of social media is permitted.  Please 
contact Hannah Harding, 01344 352308, hannah.harding@bracknell-forest.gov.uk, so that 
any special arrangements can be made. 

Published: 22 April 2022 



 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE ADVISORY PANEL 
9 MARCH 2022 
6.30  - 8.40 PM 

  

Present: 
Councillors Virgo, Mrs McKenzie-Boyle, Mrs Hayes MBE, Mrs Ingham, Leake, Mossom, 
Parker and Temperton 

Apologies for absence were received from: 
Councillors Kennedy 

35. Declarations of Interest  

There were no declarations of interest. 

36. Minutes  

The minutes of the Climate Change Advisory Panel meeting held on 9 March 2022 
were confirmed as a correct record. 
 
It was raised that a visit had taken place at the London Road site with the Minister for 
Pensions and MPs to talk about the possibility of putting photovoltaic panels on the 
site. Councillor Mrs Hayes would be arranging a visit for Members in due course, with 
proposals brought forward once they had been developed.  

37. Urgent Items of Business  

There were no urgent items of business.  

38. Climate Change Action Plan Progress Report  

Councillor Virgo introduced the Climate Change Advisory Panel and explained that 
this Advisory Panel meeting would be looking at the Council’s Decarbonisation Plans.  
 
The Climate Change Advisory Panel received the quarterly update from Kevin Gibbs, 
Executive Director: Delivery on the Climate Change Action Plan Progress Report. 
The presentation included the following highlights: 
 

 The Climate Change Strategy was looking to work with partners, schools and 
young people. 

 The action plan was looking to reduce carbon emissions that were under the 
Councils control, which was less than 2%of emissions, and to influence and 
lead community action against climate change through lobbying and 
promotion. 

 So far, the Climate Change Advisory Panel had met four times.  

 Looking forward, the Panel would be having a biodiversity update on the 25 
April, a Plan update report in May, A report on local power generation in 
September and a quarterly update in November. 

 Corporate decision making had been changed to incorporate and ensure that 
carbon emissions are now part of the report matrix. 

1

Agenda Item 3



 

 

 In the 2022/23 service plans, the climate change elements had been identified 
and flagged to ensure that they could be monitored and tracked.  

 The public health team had completed an exercise of funding bids.  

 A business survey had been undertaken, 51% of businesses had the intention 
of being more environmentally friendly, but just 12% had a specific target to 
chive net zero and only 5% had a deadline to this commitment.  

  Councillor Mrs Hayes had led a ministerial visit to the land fill site on London 
Road, to discuss a range of possible projects.  

 £154k of funding had been awarded for heat decarbonisation plans for all the 
Councils property stock. 

 Highways and Transport and received a grant for £160k for active travel 
initiatives. The funds were being used to expand cycling routes in Crowthorne 
and Sandhurst and had allowed for promotional work to increase participation 
in cycling.  

 The Council had secured £100k funding to roll out 32 residential electric 
vehicle charging points across the Borough.  

 The PPP had secured £259k of DEFRA funding to help implement measures 
to reduce the impact of poor-quality air on people’s health.  

 It was noted that the same amount of staff resource was required for an 
unsuccessful bid as it was successful. The Council had been unsuccessful on 
the Green Homes Grant Local Authority Grant, Social Housing 
Decarbonisation Fund, Public Sector Decarbonisation Fund and a Department 
for Transport bid to improve cycling and walking between Crowthorne and 
Owlsmoor.  

 The action plan covered the full breadth of council services and there were 
currently 46 live projects/initiatives.  

 Parks and Countryside had recently finished a tree planting period 
incorporating 2795 trees over 20 sites.  

 The total area of Habitats of Principal Importance had increased by 50.97 
hectors mainly due to mapping ponds across the borough. 

 The total area of Local Wildlife Sites had increased by 17.7 hectares with the 
re-designation of Lily Hill Park. 

 A project to finalise the installation of a ground source heat pump at 
Westmoreland Park was ongoing, and the service was looking at increasing 
rainwater harvesting at a number of sites following successful trials.  

 Funding had been secured to work on a bus service improvement plan. 

 Partnership work was ongoing with the Eco Rewards Scheme and had 
continued to incentivise local schools and residents to choose sustainable 
travel options. 

 Highways and transport would be undertaking a widespread consultation on 
walking and cycling habits within the borough. 

 Performance in the council’s food waste service had remained strong 
throughout the first 3 quarters, by the end of December the service had 
diverted over 5000 tonnes of food waste, which equated to 2.75kg per 
household per week. 

 The average overall recycling rate had remained high at around 58%. 

 Food Waste Action Week was between the 7 – 13 March 2022.  

 The PPP had run an anti-idling car pumper sticker design with primary 
schools. A project to start education around engine idling and idling 
enforcement would be a focus for the service over the coming year.  

 A communication plan was currently being developed for the strategy and 
outcomes. 

 There had been 11 press stories issued between November 2021 and March 
2022.  

2



 

 

 There would be changes to verge maintenance in order to reduce climate 
change impact. 

 There would be long grass left under trees throughout the growing season.  

 This was not a financial decision or linked to savings. 

 Communications regarding the changes would be released in the coming 
month on social media, the website and through press releases.  

 
As a result of the groups comments and questions, the following points were made: 
 

 Part of the grant process was to look at the worst performing properties.  

 There was a database of all the properties in the area with their ECP ratings, 
which was 47,000 houses across the borough.  

 Bids have to be undertaken as an authority area, so couldn’t be done in 
conjunction with other authorities. But can join up with other authorities once 
the bid had been successful to enable a bigger buying power.  

 There were links to all schemes on the council’s website. 

 The car club process had stalled with issues in getting a provider. 

 It was requested that better ways be looked at for getting better cycling links 
in the smaller villages in the borough. 

 The maintenance on highway would continue. 

 It was reminded that residence shouldn’t be cutting council wildflower areas. 

 Residents should be cautious of any cold calls regarding schemes in the area, 
and research should be undertaken. 

 It was requested that the EV charging points be put across the Borough as 
soon as possible.  

 There were 2 air quality monitoring areas across the borough which were 
monitored by DEFRA. 

 32 sites in car parks had been identified across the Borough for charging 
points, the infrastructure for this needed to be put in place but the project was 
being implemented as quickly as possible.  

 Reading had recently invested in an electric refuge vehicle, and a watching 
eye would be kept on this.  

 Regarding the grants for insulation in houses, local authorities were not able 
to submit a joint bid with another authority. 

 The criteria for the grants were set by Government and it wasn’t thought that 
there was a disadvantage to not being able to submit a joint authority bid. 

 The infrastructure in the north of the Borough needed more attention. 

 The highways team had stated that the road network in the north of the 
borough made it harder to install cycleways. This would be clarified.  

 It would be clarified with Highways to whether there would be member 
involvement with the consultation regarding electric charging points in car 
parks.  

 Other Local Authorities has used pavements for cycle ways. 

 A deep dive into pathways and cycleways would be brought to the Advisory 
Panel at a future meeting. 

 C02 measures had been published for the Borough and were making good 
progress against the targets.  

 
 

The Climate Change Advisory Panel received a presentation on retrofitting the 
Bracknell Forest Council Estate from Hash Patel, Services and Energy Manager. The 
presentation included the following highlights: 

 

3



 

 

 Property Services have secured £929k grant funding from the Public Sector 
Decarbonisation fund, Salix as part of their phase 1 & 2 decarbonisation 
scheme. 

 The initial phase 1 funding received £775k, from the public sector 
decarbonisation fund, for green retrofits. 

 £350k was allocated to Sandhurst School for boiler conversion and £425k for 
thermal insulation of maintained schools. 

 Additional funds were secured, from phase 2 to the sum of £154k, which 
would enable all of the councils’ properties to have a heat decarbonisation 
plan produced. 

 Bracknell Leisure Centre had flat roof replacement carried out over the sports 
hall during Spring 2021, 224 solar panels had been installed with capacity of 
100 kWp which was an estimated annual saving of £14,250 per annum and 
an estimated annual CO2 reduction of 22 tonnes. 

 Time Square had received an upgrade to the existing BMS system with a 
modern software this had reduced consumption by at least 5% and produced 
annual savings of approximately £6,600 and 14 tonnes of CO2. 

 Downshire Golf Complex had upgraded and replaced the 10 car park light 
columns with LEDs, there had been an approx. annual savings of £5k and 7.8 
tonnes of CO2. The future plan was to replace the remaining of the external 
lighting. 

 At Sandhurst School there had been installation of 4 x 350 kW new gas 
boilers in 2020/2021 this produced annual savings of approximately £50k and 
105 tonnes of CO2. 

 The Science block, Plant room and Main block roofs had also been replaced 
at Sandhurst School, with insulation increased to meet current Building 
Regulations. 

 The demolition of the entire Depot site would create a new Depot facility and 
would free up a third of the site for future development.  The new facility would 
include a green roof to provide thermal insulation, an air source heat pump, 
installation of PVs on the roof and EV charging points. 

 Future Schools 22/23 Energy Improvements included new flat roofs at Ascot 
Heath Primary School and Crowthorne C of E VC Primary. A Oil to Gas Boiler 
conversion at New Scotland Primary School and pitched roof replacement at 
Wooden Hill and Meadow Vale. 

 
As a result of the groups comments and questions, the following points were made: 
 

 Heat pumps had not been included at Sandhurst School due to timing and the 
nature of the buildings, as the fabric of the building wasn’t appropriate for the 
technology.  

 There was an export meter at the Leisure Centre but a program was also 
being looked at with legal in regards to a Power Purchase agreement.  

 Members were pleased that work to the schools was a step in the right 
direction.  

 The challenge was getting the funding for the schemes.  

 It was requested that Community Centres be looked at. 
 
 

The Climate Change Advisory Panel received a presentation on an introduction to 
Passivhaus & EnerPHit from Ben Humphries, a Director at Architype. The 
presentation included the following highlights: 
 

 Passivhaus was a design methodology used to reduce energy and increase 
comfort in buildings was at the heart of Architype’s design process.  

4



 

 

 This had been undertaken for 15 years and had become a core part of 
Architype’s business.  

 The was a large gap between predicted energy use and actual energy use. 

 It the past simple but energy consuming buildings had been produced, and 
presently complex but energy offsetting buildings had been deemed the way 
forward, however these were often unsustainable. Passivhaus looked to 
create simple but energy saving buildings with high comfort standards. 

 Passivhaus standard was typically for new build, which brought down heading 
demands to a low level.  

 EnerPHit standard was for Passivhaus retrofit standard. 

 There was also a low energy building standard with was for buildings that 
were more complex and didn’t meet the PH standard. 

 Natural light was a high priority for Passivhaus. 

 All schools were monitored against other schools in the areas for energy 
consumption benchmarks.  

 Passivhaus wasn’t just for new builds, but for retro fits as well, work was 
currently being undertaken with the University of Cambridge to convert a 1930 
building. 

 Work was being done with the Plymouth Marjon University campus for a net 
zero campus.  

 There were know several thousand Passivhaus houses.  

 Insulation and airtightness were key. 

39. Date of Next Meeting  

25 April 2022 

CHAIRMAN 

5



This page is intentionally left blank

6



Restoring Biodiversity in 
Bracknell Forest

Stephen Chown 
Head of Natural Estates

7

A
genda Item

 6



Biodiversity crisis
• 13% species threatened with 

extinction
• 41% species have 

decreased in abundance
• 413 species have gone 

extinct from England and 
Wales in last 200 years

• UK is in the 10% most nature 
depleted countries in the 
world 

8



Why?

9



Nature – what has it ever done for us?

FoodFlood 
control

Materials Clean air

Mental 
health

Tourism

Clean 
water

Carbon 
storage

Physical 
health

Soil 
creation

Recycling 
waste

Climate 
control

These Ecosystem Services help us
adapt to Climate Change 

10



Restoring Biodiversity – what we do

• NERC Biodiversity duty 
• Managing services, land and 

facilities
• Educating and influencing 

local community
• Policy and planning
• Councils have a central role in 

the community

11



Biodiversity Action Plan 2018-2023
• Bracknell Forest Nature Partnership
• 5 Habitats

⁻ Grassland
⁻ Woodland 
⁻ Heathland
⁻ Farmland
⁻ Urban

• General themes
• 84 targets over six years

12



BAP mid-term review 2018-2020

14.7 hectares of wildflower grassland created or enhanced

890 veteran trees recorded in the borough

1.3km hedgerows planted

4 new ponds created, 3 restored and 10 surveyed

Over 7000 volunteer hours on practical habitat management

13



Tree planting – winter 2021/22

• Over 3000 trees
• Highways projects
• Section 106 urban trees
• Company funding 
• Sites:

- South Hill Park
- Jennetts Hill
- The Parks
- Larks Hill
- Nine Mile Ride

14



Grassland – cutting regimes

• 97% species rich grassland 
lost since 1930s

• Roadside Nature Reserves 
(Blooming Biodiversity)

• Reduced grass under trees 
approved in February 2022

15



Meadow creation - Bluebell Hill 

• Section 106 funded
• 5 years old
• Annual meadow cut and 
collect

• Total 78 plant species 
recorded

• Average 49% 
wildflower cover

2016

2021

16



Woodlands, hedgerows and 
orchards

• Recording veteran tree locations
• Removing invasive species
• Maintaining deadwood habitats
• Planting new habitats

17



Longhill Park
2017

2019

18



New opportunities

Biodiversity 
Net Gain –

developments 
increasing 

habitat value by 
10% 

Green 
Infrastructure 
– connecting 
across the 
borough

Nature recovery 
network –

connecting across 
Berkshire

Natural capital 
investment –
valuing and 
investing in 

services nature 
provides us

19



Planning and 
development

• 496 wildlife features secured since 2018
• Biodiversity Net Gain

- Measuring biodiversity before/after 
development

- Expecting 10% on all major applications now
- Mandatory in 2023 for most applications

20



Green Infrastructure
• emerging Local Plan policy
• Biodiversity – connecting 

habitats, allow species to move
• Public Open Space –

providing greenspace on the 
doorstep

• Access – links to longer routes 
and rights of way

• Flood control – managing 
water and recognising the 
floodplain

21



Natural Capital
• Putting a value on our existing 

natural resources
• Influencing decisions 
• Attracting investment
• Existing trees and other habitats 

absorb more carbon that new 
planting

• i-tree canopy analysis –
identifying random points then 
assigning generic values

Bullbrook ward:

• 26.5% tree cover

• Storing 3,412 tonnes Carbon 
(12,500 CO2 equivalent)

• Absorbing 135 tonnes/yr

• Combined carbon services value 
£509,686

22



Climate change and biodiversity 
• Inextricably linked 
• Habitats with high biodiversity:

are more resilient to change, 

absorb and store more carbon,

cool urban areas,

support mental and physical wellbeing, and

provide many more ecosystem services than 
degraded species poor habitats

23



End24



19.  

Wildlife and Nature Conservation 
in Bracknell Forest

Des Sussex:  local resident and Conservation Manager for Crown Estate

• Bracknell Forest is an incredibly diverse borough:  important habitats and 
wildlife, much of it accessible to people.

• Credit to many people to have retained & created habitats for wildlife in such a 
crowded & pressurised borough. But we need more! 

• Valuable habitats and sites include 
• Ancient habitats  such as woodland and grasslands
• Restored sites such as Wykery Copse SSSI, Caesars Camp heathland
• Created sites like Horseshoe Lake, Peacock Meadows, Butler’s Forest   

• I have seen the wildlife return - hugely exciting and rewarding for the visions, 
costs and effort to achieve many great outcomes

25



20.  

People and Wildlife

• It all needs management. Great that BFC ‘backs nature’ through planning policies 
and funding of countryside team but it needs more.

• Objective must be that the wildlife is present because of our actions, not in spite 
of our actions.

• Rangers and others conserve sites AND enable public enjoyment and 
participation. All public and private landowners need to play their part. 

26



21.  

People and Wildlife

• Recreational opportunity is a great ‘ecosystem service’ but recreational pressure 
and impacts are one of our biggest challenges and threats to nature. Visitor 
management, rangers and education. 

• Large SSSI’s to road verges, small wildlife gardens, street trees, bug hotels and bat 
boxes - all play their part in nature’s recovery

• Highest value features in Bracknell are the ancient ‘open grown trees ‘  especially 
English oaks. Found in many parks and woodlands, and some street trees. 
Establish more for the next 1000 years! 

27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



April 2022

Supporting nature on 
the Windsor Estate

29

A
genda Item

 7



Windsor

• Crown Estate purpose  “to create lasting and shared 
prosperity for the nation”.

• 6,600 hectares of Designated & Non Designated Land

• 80% of land is subject to environmental, ecological, and land 
use designations.

• TCE Act 1961, S. 5, sets out that Windsor is “to be 
maintained in its present character as a Royal Park and 
Forest”

30



4

Windsor Strategy

Royal Family VisitorsLocal Community Natural Environment

At Windsor, our ambition is to be known as the UK’s leading rural estate, and as 
a centre of excellence for environmental and ecological best practice. 

A significant challenge we face is balancing significant public access with the need to protect and conserve some of the 
UK and Europe’s most unique environmental and ecological sites. 

Longer term, we want to contribute to our net zero ambition and provide educational opportunities.

31



An ancient ‘Treescape’  
extending across Bracknell 
Forest.
The most important 
environmental asset.

32



33



Establishing open 
grown trees

Offa’s Oak and
‘baby Offa’

Farmland planting34



Conservation grazing 
with rare breed cattle

35



Nationally important Fungi

Huge pressure from collectors

36



Violet Click beetle

Royal splinter cranefly

Very rare insects

Stag beetle

37



Heathland conservation
and restoration 

38



Dartford warbler Woodlark

Nightjar

39



Pond creation in Crowthorne Woods 

40



Small red damselfly

Keeled skimmer
Nationally important populations 

of dragonflies and damselflies

Sphagnum peatland mires

41



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 A presentation from Bracknell Forest Council's Natural Estate  - Stephen Chown - Head of Natural Estates
	�
	Biodiversity crisis
	Slide Number 3
	Nature – what has it ever done for us?
	Restoring Biodiversity – what we do
	Biodiversity Action Plan 2018-2023
	BAP mid-term review 2018-2020
	Tree planting – winter 2021/22
	Grassland – cutting regimes
	Meadow creation - Bluebell Hill 
	Woodlands, hedgerows and orchards
	Longhill Park
	New opportunities
	Planning and development
	Green Infrastructure
	Natural Capital
	Climate change and biodiversity 
	End
	Wildlife and Nature Conservation �in Bracknell Forest� �Des Sussex:  local resident and Conservation Manager for Crown Estate
	People and Wildlife
	People and Wildlife

	7 A presentation from the Crown Estate - Des Sussex
	Slide Number 1
	Supporting nature on the Windsor Estate�
	Windsor
	Windsor Strategy
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14


